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1

I, Jeffrey R. Patterson, declare as follows:

2

1.

I am an attorney with Allen Matkins Leck Gamble Mallory & Natsis

3 LLP, counsel for Thomas A. Seaman ("Receiver"), the Court-appointed permanent
4 receiver for Medical Capital Holdings, Inc., Medical Capital Corporation, and
5 Medical Provider Funding Corporation VI, and their subsidiaries and affiliates
6 (collectively, "Medical Capital" or the "Receivership Entities"). The following facts
7 are within my knowledge and if called as a witness I would testify to them under
8 oath.
9

2.

Starting in 2005, the manner in which the medical practices of

10 Dr. Robert Schepp ("Schepp") were operated and financed became the subject of
11 substantial litigation in New York between various insurance carriers and Schepp
12 (the "Schepp Litigation"). The insurance carriers argued that the way the medical
13 practices were operated and financed violated New York "No Fault" laws, rendering
14 the relevant insurance claims uncollectible. The insurance carriers also sought to
15 recover payments previously made, which payments had gone directly to Medical
16 Capital as payment for loans secured by Schepp's accounts receivable. Schepp
17 contested these allegations, arguing that his medical practices were operated and
18 financed in compliance with New York law. The Medical Capital entities were not
19 parties to most of these cases.
20

3.

Schepp is represented by Edward K. Blodnick of Edward K. Blodnick

21 & Associates, P.C., formerly known as Blodnick & Baum, P.C. ("Blodnick") in the
22 Schepp Litigation.
23

4.

Shortly after the Temporary Restraining Order appointing the Receiver

24 was entered on August 3, 2009 ("TRO"), a notice and copy thereof was filed in the
25 Schepp Litigation, putting all parties and their counsel, including Blodnick, on
26 notice of the Receiver's appointment. A true and correct copy of the notice filed on
27 August 6, 2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
28
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5. Prior to the Receiver’s appointment, the Medical Capital entities had

2 been represented in the Schepp Litigation by New York attorney Kenneth C. Henry,
3 lr. Pursuant to the powers granted to him in the TRO and Preliminary Injunction,
4 the Receiver retained Mr. Henry to continue to represent the Medical Capital
5 entities. Additionally, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 754, the Receiver filed the TRO as
6 its own miscellaneous case in the United States District Court for the Eastern
7 District of New York, thereby obtaining complete jurisdiction and control over all
8 receivership estate property located in the district. A true and correct copy of the
9 first page of the TRO reflecting the miscellaneous case filing on August 6, 2009 is
10 attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Schepp Litigation is pending in the Eastern
11 District of New York. Blodnick’s offices are also located there.
12

6. On September 16, 2009, my colleague Ted Fates and I had a telephone

13 call with Blodnick to discuss Parkway Hospital, a matter unrelated to Schepp, on
14 which Medical Capital had retained Blodnick. When the discussion relating to
15 Parkway Hospital was concluded, Blodnick mentioned that there were settlements
16 being reached in the Schepp Litigation, and that he would be sending a check to the
17 Receiver relating to those settlements. Blodnick stated that the Medical Capital
18 entities were not parties to the cases being settled, therefore were not parties to the
19 settlement agreements, such that the Receiver need not consent to or sign the
20 settlement agreements. Blodnick also stated that the insurance carriers required that
21 all terms of the settlements be kept confidential. Blodnick did not state how his fees
22 were being paid, disclose any pre-receivership fee arrangement with Medical
23 Capital or request the Receiver’s approval thereof. In a subsequent letter, Blodnick
24 stated that the proposed settlement with State Farm is an "outstanding result"
25 because State Farm "was well aware of the appointment of a Receiver for MCC and
26 that there would be no more funding to pursue the various lawsuits." A true and
27 correct copy of the letter is attached hereto as Exhibit C.
28
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On January 26, 2010, at a status conference held in the State Farm

2 action in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York, the
3 Honorable Frederick Block presiding, Blodnick was ordered to produce information
4 requested by the Receiver no later than February 10, 2010.
5

8. During a telephone call I had with Blodnick on April 26, 2010,

6 Blodnick stated that the vast majority of his legal work relating to the Schepp
7 Litigation was completed prior to the Receiver’s appointment.
8

9. On May 14, 2010, Blodnick produced his time records for work

9 relating to Schepp, including for work performed since the Receiver’s appointment.
10 These records show time entries for Mr. Blodnick and his staff totaling $421,413.30
11 at stated hourly rates, for the time period August 3, 2009 through May 11, 2010.
12
13

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

14

Executed on June/’o, 2010, at San Diego, California.

15
Patterson

16
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Kenneth C. Henry, Jr., P.C.
Kenneth C. Henry, Jr., Esq. KH-7653
Attorneys for Defendants
Medical Capital Corporation,
Medical Capital Holdings, Inc.,
Medical Capital Management, Inc.,
MCC Special Proposes Corporation llI,
Carlmont Capital Special Purpose Corporation 11,
Specialty Practice Management and Healthcare Financial
Management & Acquisitions, Inc.
900 Merchants Concourse, Suite 303
Westbury, New York 11590
Tel. (516) 227-2200
Efax (866) 277-8938
E-mail: k~enry@kenhenryesq.com
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
STATE FARM MUTUAL AUTOMOBILE
INSURANCE COMPANY and THE TRAVELERS
INDEMNITY COMPANY,
Plaintiffs,
-against-

ROBERT SCOTT SCHEPP, M.D.,
Defendant,
-andPREFERRED MEDICAL IMAGING, P.C.,
DEAJESS MEDICAL IMAGING, P.C.,
BOSTON POST ROAD MEDICAL IMAGING, P.C.,
Collectively the "First Generation PCs"

-andHILLEL SHER,
MRI GLOBAL IMAGING SERVICES, INC.,
FORUM MEDICAL MANAGEMENT INC.,
Collectively the "Sher Defendants"

NOTICE OF STAY
Docket No. CV07-1353 (FB)(SMG)
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-andMEDICAL CAPITAL CORPORATION,
MEDICAL CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.,
MEDICAL CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, INC.,
MCC SPECIAL PURPOSES CORPORATION III,
CARLMONT CAPITAL SPECIAL PURPOSE CORPORATION II
Collectively the "MCC Defendants"
-andSPECIALTY PRACTICE MANAGEMENT,
HEALTHCARE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
& ACQUISITIONS, INC.,
-and-

AVIVA MEDICAL IMAGING, P.C.
-andSTANLEY SONN,
MULTIPLE BILLING SYSTEMS LLC
Collectively the "Sonn Defendants"

-andJOHN SANSONE,
MICHAEL MITSELMAKHER,
PARAMOUNT EXPRESS IMAGING, INC.
Collectively the "Paramount Defendants".

Please be advised that in an action styled Securities and Exchange, Commission, Plaintiff,
vs. Medical Capital Holdings, lnc.," Medical Capital Corporation; Medical Provider Funding
Corporation V1," Sidney M. Field; and Joseph J. Lampariello, Defendants, United States District
Court, Central District of California, Southern Division Case No. SA CV09-0818 DOC(RNBx)
a temporary receiver has been appointed and there is a stay against all receiver entities. Copy of the
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Order annexed.
Kenneth C. Henry, Jr., P.C.
/s/Kenneth C. Henry, Jr., Esq.
Attorneys for Medical Capital
Corporation, Medical Capital Holdings,
Inc., Medical Capital Management, Inc.,
MCC Special Purposes Corporation III,
Carlmont Capital Special Purpose
Corporation II, Specialty Practice
Management and Healthcare Financial
Management & Acquisitions, Inc.
900 Merchants Concourse Suite 303
Westbury, NY 11590
(516) 227-2200
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JOHN B. BI~GOZDY, Cal Bar No. 219897
Email: bul ozdz" sec. ov

s.

Oal

Email: chungni@sec.gov
MORGAN B. W-ARD-DORAN, Cal. Bar No. 246107
Email: warddoranm@sec.gov

4
sAttorneys
for Plaintiff
ecurities and
Exchange Commission
Rosalind R. Tyson, Regional Director
6 Andrew G. Petillon, Associate Regional Director
John M. McCoy III, Regional Trial Counsel
7 5670 Wilshire Boulevard, 1 lth Floor
Los Angeles, California 90036-3648
8 Telephone: (323) 965-3998
Facsimile: (323) 965-3908
9
5

10
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

11
12

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

13

SOUTHERN DIVISION

14 SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

Case No. SA CV09-0818 DOC(RNBx)

15

TEMPORARY RESTRAINING
ORDER AND ORDE.RS: (1)
FREEZING ASSETS, 2)
APPOINTING A TEMPORARY
RECEIVER; (3) PROHIBITING
THE DESTRUCTION OF
DOCUMENTS; AND (4)
.
REQUIRING ACCOUNTINGS;
AND ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE
RE PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION
AND APPOINTMENT OF A
PERMANENT RECEIVER

COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

16
VS,

17

MEDICAL CAPITAL HOLDINGS,
18 INC.; MEDICAL CAPITAL
CORPORATION; MEDICAL
19 PROVIDER FUNDING
CORPORATION VI; SIDNEY M.
20 FIELD; and JOSEPH J.
LAMPARIELLO,
21

Defendants.

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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This matter came to be heard upon the Ex Parte Application of Plaintiff

2 Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission") for a Temporary
3 Restraining Order and Orders: (1) Freezing Assets, (2) Appointing a Temporary
4 Receiver, (3) Prohibiting the Destruction of Documents, (4) Granting Expedited
5 Discovery, and (5) Requiring Accountings; and Order to Show Cause re
6 Preliminary Injunction and Appointment of a Permanent Receiver (the
7 "Application").
8

The Court, having considered the Commission’s Complaint, the Application,

9 the supporting Memorandum of Points and Authorities, Declarations and Exhibits,
10 Plaintiffs’ Opposition, the Commissions’ Reply, and other evidence and argument
11 presented regarding the Application, finds that:
12

A. This Court has jurisdiction over the parties to, and the subject matter

13 of, this action.
14

B. Good cause exists to believe that defendants Medical Capital

15 Holdings, Inc. ("MCHI"), Medical Capital Corporation ("MCC"), Medical
16 Provider Funding Corporation VI ("MP VI), Sidney M. Field ("Field"), and Joseph
17 J. Lampariello ("Lampariello"), and each of them, have engaged in, are engaging
18 in, and are about to engage in transactions, acts, practices and courses of business
19 that constitute violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities
20 Act"), 15 U.S.C. § § 77q(a), Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
21 ("Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §
22 240.10b-5.

C. The Commission has demonstrated a probability of success on the
24 aaerits in this action and the possibility of dissipation of assets.
D. Good cause exists to believe that defendants will continue to engage
25
23

26 in such violations to the immediate and irreparable loss and damage to investors
27 and to the general public unless they are restrained and enjoined.
28
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1
2
3

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Commission’s Application for a

4 Temporary Restraining Order and Orders: (1) Freezing Assets, (2) Appointing a
5

Temporary Receiver, (3) Prohibiting the Destruction of Documents, and (4)

6 Requiring Accountings; and Order to Show Cause Re Preliminary Injunction and
7 Appointment of a Permanent Receiver is GRANTED.
8

II.

9

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field,

10 and Lampariello, and their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys,
11 subsidiaries and affiliates, and those persons in active concert or participation with
12 any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, by personal service or
13 otherwise, and each of them, be and hereby are temporarily restrained and enjoined
14 from, directly or indirectly, in the offer or sale of any securities, by the use of any
15 means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce
16 or by the use of the mails:
17

A.

employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;

18

B.

obtaining money or propel~ by means of any untrue statement of a

19

material fact or any omission to state a material fact necessary in order

20

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under

21

which they were made, not misleading; or
engaging in any transaction, practice, or course of business which

22

C.

operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser;
24 in violation of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a).
Ill.
25
23

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field,
27 ~nd Lampariello, and their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys,
28 subsidiaries and affiliates, and those persons in active concert or participation with
26
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any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, by personal service or

2 otherwise, and each of them, be and hereby are temporarily restrained and enjoined
3

from, directly or indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security,

4 by the use of any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails,
5

or of any facility of any national securities exchange:

6

A.

employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;

7

B.

making any untrue statement of a material fact or omitting to state a

8

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the

9

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; or

10
11

C.

engaging in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person;

12

13 in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule
14 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5.
IV.

15
16

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendant MCC and its officers, agents,

17 servants, employees, attorneys, subsidiaries and affiliates, and those persons in
18 active concert or participation with it, who receive actual notice of this Order, by
19 personal service or otherwise, and each of them, be and hereby are temporarily
20 restrained and enjoined from, directly or indirectly, in connection with the
21 purchase or sale of securities, by the use of means or instrumentalities of interstate
22 commerce, or the mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange,
23 aiding and abetting any person to:
A. employ any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;
24
25

B.

make any untrue statement of a material fact or omitting to state a

26

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the

27

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not

28

misleading; or
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in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule

4 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5.

V.

5
6

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, except as otherwise ordered by this

7

Court, defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello and their officers,

agents, servants, employees, attorneys, subsidiaries and affiliates, and those
9 persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive actual
10 notice of this Order, by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, be and
8

11 hereby are temporarily restrained and enjoined from, directly or indirectly:
12

A. transferring, assigning, selling, hypothecating, changing, wasting,

13

dissipating, converting, concealing, encumbering, or otherwise

14

disposing of, in any manner, any funds, assets, securities, claims, or

15

other real or personal property, wherever located, of defendants

16

MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello, or their subsidiaries or

17

affiliates, owned by, controlled by, managed by or in the possession or

18

custody of any of them;
transferring, assigning, selling, hypothecating, encumbering, or

19

B.

20

otherwise disposing of any securities, including, but not limited to,

21
22

any investment contracts or other securities of defendants MCHI,
MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello, or any of their subsidiaries or

23

affiliates.

24
25

VI.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, except as otherwise ordered by this

26 Court, an immediate freeze shall be placed on all monies and assets (with an
27 allowance for necessary and reasonable living expenses to be granted only upon
28 good cause shown by application to the Court with notice to and an opportunity for
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the Commission to be heard) in all accounts at any bank, financial institution or

2 brokerage firm, all certificates of deposit, and other funds or assets, held in the
3

name of, for the benefit of, or over which account authority is held by MCHI,

4 MCC, and MP VI, or any entity affiliated with any of them, including, but not
5 limited to, the accounts set forth below:
6

11~16714
~7484
~9331
~9988

Bank of America
Comerica Bank
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America

~7764

Bank of America

Bank of America

MCC

~9935
~9948

MCC

~5440

Bank of America

MCC
MCC

~7805
~7818

Bank of America

~7561

17

MCC
MCHI
MCHI
MCHI

18

MPFC Funds Account

19

MPFC VI
MPFC VI
MPFC VI
MPFC VI
MPFC VI
MPFC VI
MPFC VI

8

MCC
MCC
MCC

9

MCC

10
11

MCC
MCC
MCC

12

MCC

13

7

14
15
16

20
21
22
23
24
25

~5853

~2461

~1812

~0426
~1450
~6771
~3384

~4860
[]3415
Unknown
UHknOWH

Unknown
Unknown

Bank of America

Bank of America
Bank of America
Comerica Bank
Bank of America
Bank of America
Wells Fargo Bank
City National Bank
CityNational Bank
Bank of New York

Cal{fornia Bank & Trust
Comerica Bank
Wells Fargo Bank
Zions First National Bank

VII.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Thomas A. Seaman is appointed as

26 temporary receiver ofMCHI, MCC, and MP VI, and their subsidiaries and
27 affiliates, with full powers of an equity receiver, including, but not limited to, full
28 power over all funds, assets, collateral, premises (whether owned, leased,
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occupied, or otherwise controlled), choses in action, books, records, papers and

2 other property belonging to, being managed by or in the possession of or control of

MCHI, MCC, MP VI, and their subsidiaries and affiliates, and that such receiver is
4 immediately authorized, empowered and directed:
A. to have access to and to collect and take custody, control, possession,
5
3

7

and charge of all funds, assets, collateral, premises (whether owned,
leased, occupied, or otherwise controlled), choses in action, books,

8

records, papers and other real or personal property, wherever located,

9

of or managed by MCHI, MCC, and MP VI, and their subsidiaries and

6

10

affiliates, with full power to sue, foreclose, marshal, collect, receive,

11

and take into possession all such property (including access to and

12

taking custody, control, and possession of all such MCHI, MCC, and

13

MP VI property, and that of their subsidiaries and affiliates;

15

to have control of, and to be added as the sole authorized signatory
for, all accounts of the entities in receivership, including all accounts

16

at any bank, title company, escrow agent, financial institution or

17

brokerage firm (including any futures commission merchant) which

18

has possession, custody or control of any assets or funds of MCHI,

19

MCC, and MP VI, and their subsidiaries and affiliates, or which

20

maintains accounts over which MCHI, MCC, and MP VI, and their

21

subsidiaries and affiliates, and/or any of their employees or agents

22

have signatory authority;
to conduct such investigation and discovery as may be necessary to

14

23

B.

C.

24

locate and account for all of the assets of or managed by MCHI,

25

MCC, and MP VI, and their subsidiaries and affiliates, and to engage

26

and employ attorneys, accountants and other persons to assist in such
investigation and discovery;

27
28

6

Case 8:09-cv-00818-DOC -RNB Document 303-2

1

D.

Filed 06/11/10 Page 16 of 32

to take such action as is necessary and appropriate to preserve and

2

take control of and to prevent the dissipation, concealment, or

3

disposition of any assets of or managed by MCHI, MCC, and MP VI,

4

and their subsidiaries and affiliates;
to make an accounting, on or before August 12, 2009 at 12:00 p.m., to

5

E.

6

this Court and the Commission of the assets and financial condition of
MCHI, MCC, and MP VI, and to file the accounting with the Court

7
8
9

F.

and deliver copies thereof to all parties;
to make such payments and disbursements from the funds and assets

10

taken into custody, control, and possession or thereafter received by

11

him or her, and to incur, or authorize the making of, such agreements

12

as may be necessary and advisable in discharging his or her duties as

13

temporary receiver;

14

G.

to employ attorneys, accountants, and others to investigate and, where

15

appropriate, to institute, pursue, and prosecute all claims and causes of

16

action of whatever kind and nature which may now or hereafter exist

17

as a result of the activities of present or past employees or agents of

18

MCHI, MCC, and MP VI, and their subsidiaries and affiliates; and

19

H.

to have access to and monitor all mail, electronic mail, and video

20

phone of the entities in receivership in order to review such mail,

21

electronic mail, and video phone which he or she deems relates to

22

their business and the discharging of his or her duties as temporary

23

receiver.

24
25

VIII.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field,

26 and Lampariello, their subsidiaries and affiliates, including all of the other entities
27 in receivership, and their officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys, and
28 any other persons who are in custody, possession or control of any assets,
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collateral, books, records, papers or other property of or managed by any of the

2 entities in receivership, shall forthwith give access to and control of such property
3 to the temporary receiver.
4

IX.

5

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that no officer, agent, servant, employee or

6 attorney of MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello shall take any action or
7 purport to take any action, in the name of or on behalf of MCHI, MCC, and MP
8 VI, without the written consent of the temporary receiver or order of this Court.
9

X.

10

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, except by leave of this Court, during the

11 pendency of this receivership, all clients, investors, trust beneficiaries, note
12 holders, creditors, claimants, lessors and all other persons or entities seeking relief
13 of any kind, in law or in equity, from MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and
14 Lampariello, or their subsidiaries or affiliates, and all persons acting on behalf of
15 any such investor, trust beneficiary, note holder, creditor, claimant, lessor,
16 consultant group or other person, including sheriffs, marshals, servants, agents,
17 employees and attorneys, are hereby restrained and enjoined from, directly or
18 indirectly, with respect to these persons and entities:
19

A. commencing, prosecuting, continuing or enforcing any suit or

20

proceeding (other than the present action by the Commission or any

21

other action by the government) against any of them;
using self-help or executing or issuing or causing the execution or

22

B.

23

issuance of any court attachment, subpoena, replevin, execution or

24

other process for the purpose of impounding or taking possession of

25

or interfering with or creating or enforcing a lien upon any property or

26

property interests owned by or in the possession of MCHI, MCC, and

27

MP VI; and

28

Case 8:09-cv-00818-DOC -RNB Document 303-2

1

C.

Filed 06/11/10 Page 18 of 32

doing any act or thing whatsoever to interfere with taking control,

2

possession or management by the temporary receiver appointed

3

hereunder of the property and assets owned, controlled or managed by

4

or in the possession of MCHI, MCC, and MP VI, or in any way to

5

interfere with or harass the temporary receiver or his or her attorneys,

6

accountants, employees, or agents or to interfere in any manner with

7

the discharge of the temporary receiver’s duties and responsibilities

8

hereunder.

9

XI.

10

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field,

11 and Lampariello, and their subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, agents, servants,
12 employees and attorneys, shall cooperate with and assist the temporary receiver
13 and shall take no action, directly or indirectly, to hinder, obstruct, or otherwise
14 interfere with the temporary receiver or his or her attorneys, accountants,
15 employees or agents, in the conduct of the temporary receiver’s duties or to
16 interfere in any manner, directly or indirectly, with the custody, possession,
17 management, or control by the temporary receiver of the funds, assets, collateral,
18 premises, and choses in action described above.
19

XII.

20

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field,

21 and Lampariello, and their subsidiaries and affiliates, shall pay the costs, fees and
22 expenses of the temporary receiver incurred in connection with the performance of
23 his or her duties described in this Order, including the costs and expenses of those
24 persons who may be engaged or employed by the temporary receiver to assist him
25 or her in carrying out his or her duties and obligations. All applications for costs,
26 fees, and expenses for services rendered in connection with the receivership other
27 than routine and necessary business expenses in conducting the receivership, such
28 as salaries, rent, and any and all other reasonable operating expenses, shall be
9
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made by application setting forth in reasonable detail the nature of the services and
2 shall be heard by the Court.
XIII.
3
1

4

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that no bond shall be required in connection

5 with the appointment of the temporary receiver. Except for an act of gross
6 negligence, the temporary receiver shall not be liable for any loss or damage
7

incurred by any of the defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees and

8

attorneys or any other person, by reason of any act performed or omitted to be

9 performed by the temporary receiver in connection with the discharge of his or her
10 duties and responsibilities.

XIV.

11
12

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that representatives of the Commission and

13 any other government agency are authorized to have continuing access to inspect
14 or copy any or all of the corporate books and records and other documents of
15 MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello, and the other entities in
16 receivership, and continuing access to inspect their funds, property, assets and
17 collateral, wherever located.
18
19

XV.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, except as otherwise ordered by this

20 Court, defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello, and their officers,
21 agents, servants, employees, attorneys, subsidiaries and affiliates, including any
22 other entities in receivership, and those persons in active concert or participation
23 with any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, by personal service or
24 otherwise, and each of them, be and hereby are temporarily restrained and enjoined
25 from, directly or indirectly: destroying, mutilating, concealing, transferring,
26 altering, or otherwise disposing of, in any manner, any documents, which includes
27 all books, records, computer programs, computer files, computer printouts,
28 contracts, correspondence, memoranda, brochures, or any other documents of any
10
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kind in their possession, custody or control, however created, produced, or stored

2 (manually, mechanically, electronically, or otherwise), pertaining in any manner to
3

defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field, and Lampariello, and their subsidiaries

4 and affiliates.
XVI.

5
6

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants Field, and Lampariello shall,

7 within five days of the issuance of this Order, prepare and deliver to the
8 Commission a detailed and complete schedule of all of their personal assets,
9 including all real and personal property exceeding $5,000 in value, and all bank,
10 securities, futures and other accounts identified by institution, branch address and
11 account number. The accounting shall include a description of the source(s) of all
12 such assets. Such accounting shall be filed with the Court and a copy shall be
13 delivered to the Commission’s Los Angeles Regional Office. After completion of
14 the accounting, defendants Field, and Lampariello shall produce to the
15 Commission’s Los Angeles Regional Office, at a time agreeable to the
16 Commission, all books, records and other documents supporting or underlying
17 their accounting.
18
19

XVII.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCH~, MCC, MP VI, Field,

20 and Lampariello, and their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys,
21 subsidiaries and affiliates, including the other entities in receivership, shall, within
22 24 hours of the issuance of this Order, cause to be prepared and delivered to the
23 temporary receiver, a detailed and complete schedule of all desk top computers,
24 laptop computers and/or personal digital assistants ("PDA") owned and/or used by
25 them in connection with their business. In the case of defendants Field, and
26 Lampariello, they shall, within 24 hours of the issuance of this Order, prepare and
27 deliver to the temporary receiver, a detailed and complete schedule of all desk top
28 computers, laptop computers and/or PDA’s owned, controlled or used by them for
11
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any purpose. The schedules required by this section shall include at a minimum

2 the make, model and description of each computer and/or PDA, along with its
3 location, the name of the person primarily assigned to use the computer and/or
4 PDA, all passwords necessary to access the computer and/or PDA, and all
5 passwords necessary to access and use the software contained on the computer
6 and/or PDA. The temporary receiver shall be authorized to make an electronic,
7 digital or hard copy of all of the data contained on the computers and/or PDAs.
XVIII.

8
9

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants MCHI, MCC, MP VI, Field,

10 and Lampariello, and their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys,
11 subsidiaries and affiliates, including the other entities in receivership, shall, within
12 24 hours of the issuance of this Order, cause to be prepared and delivered to the
13 temporary receiver, a detailed and complete schedule of all passwords, usernames,
14 and identification numbers for all web sites, email accounts, and all accounts at any
15 bank, financial institution or brokerage firm operated by or to which MCHI, MCC,
16 and MP VI has access.
17

XIX.

18

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Temporary Restraining Order shall

19 expire at 11:59 a.m. on August 17, 2009, unless, for good cause shown, it is
20 extended or unless the parties against whom it is directed consent that it may be
21 extended for a longer period.
22

XX,

23

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that at 8:30 a.m. on August 17, 2009, or as

24 soon thereafter as the parties can be heard, the defendants, and each of them, shall
25 appear before the Honorable David O. Carter, Judge of the United States District
26 Court for the Central District of California, to show cause, if there be any, why a
27 preliminary injunction should not be granted and a permanent receiver not
28 appointed in accordance with the prayer for relief contained in this Complaint filed
12
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by the Commission. Any declarations, affidavits, points and authorities, or other

2 submissions in support of, or in opposition to, the issuance of such an Order shall
3

be filed with the Court and delivered to the Commission’s Los Angeles office and

4 the offices of the defendants and/or their attorneys no later than 12:00 p.m. on
5

August 10, 2009. Any reply papers shall be filed with the Court and delivered to

6 opposing counsel no later than 12:00 p.m. on August 13, 2009. Service of all such
7 papers shall be by electronic mail, facsimile, or personal service.
8

XXI.

9

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over

10 this action for the purpose of implementing and carrying out the terms of all orders
11 and decrees which may be entered herein and to entertain any suitable application
12 or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction of this Court.
13
14

IT IS SO ORDERED.

15
16 DATED: August 3, 2009
17

TIME: 8:25 a.m.

18
19
20
21

I_rNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

22 Presented by:
23
24 John B. Bulgozdy
Nicholas S. ~2hung
25 Morgan B. Ward Doran
Attorneys for Plaintiff
26 Securities and Exchange Commission
27
28
13
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JOHN B. B!3LGOZDY, Cal Bar No. 219897
Email: bul~ozdyi@sec.~ov
NICHOLAS S. CHUN~ Cal Bar No. 192784
Email: churigi~jli@ ~ec.gosec~ ov
MORGAN ~. WARD’DORAN, Cal. Bar No. 246107
Email: ward, doranm@sec.gov
ttorneys f~r Plaintiff
ecurities and Exchange Commission
Rosalind R. ~yson, Regional Director
Andrew O. Petillon, Associate Regional Director
John M. Me.Cog IIL Regional Trial Counsel
5670 Wilshi~’e BouIevarg, 4 lth Floor
Los Angeles, Galifornia 90036-3648
Telephone: ~(323) 965-3998
Facsimile: (323) 965-3908 .

IN CL~RK’S OFRCE
U.S. DISTR~CT COURT

BROOKLYN OFFICE

~

10
11

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

12

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

13

SOUTHERN DIVISION

14 SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,
15
Plaintiff,
16
VS.

17

MEDICAL CAPITAL HOLDINGS,
1~8 INC.; MEDICAL CAPITAL
CORPORA,;.T.ION; MEDICAL
1-9 PROVIDER FUNDING
CORPORATION VI; SIDNEY M.
20 FIELD; andlJOSEPH J.
LAMP.KRIELLO,
21
Defendants.
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case No.. SA CV09-0818 DOC(RNBx)
TEMPORARY RESTRAINING

ORDER AND ORDE.R, Si: (1)

FREEZING ASSET_S_;_C2,)
APPOINTING A TEMI~ORARY.
RECEIVER; (3) PROHIBITING
THE DESTRUCTION OF
DOCUMENTS; AND (4) .

REOUIRING ACCO~U~.~INGS;
ANI) ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE
RE I~RELIMINAR¥ IN.~UNCTION
AND APPOINTMENT OF A
PERMANENT RECEIVER
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EDWARD K. BLODNICK & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Attorneys and Counselors ,at Law

1205 Franklin Avenue, Suite 110
Garden City, New York 11530
(516) 248-0022
(516) 248-6555 Facsimile*
(*Not for Service of Litigation Papers)
Edward K, Blodnlck
Paul A. Lannl

Jeffrey I. Baum, of Counsel
Deborah J. Mazzola¢ Office Administrator

January 20, 2010

Ted Fates, Esq.
Allen Matldns Leck Gamble Mallory & Natsis LLP
501 West Broadway, 15th Floor
San Diego, California 92101
Re:

SECv. Medical Capital Holdings, et al.; Collections on Dr. Schepp
Claims Against Insurance Carriers

Dear Mr. Fates:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter of January 15, 2010. In regard to your
request to produce all the information by February 1, 2010 it will be impractical for me to do so
since I will be out of the office at least two days this week and almost all of next week. I think
February 15, 2010 is more realistic and I will attempt to get you the information at that time.
Secondly, after our telephone conversation of January 13, I believe it might be helpful for
me to set forth the purpose of my retention, the cases that I handled, the issues involved and how
they affected Medical Capital Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliates. I was initially
retained in August of 2005 by Medical Capital Corporation ("MCC") on behalf of Robert S.
Schepp, M.D. and his three entities, Deajess Medical Imaging, P.C., Boston Post Road Medical
Imaging, P.C. and Preferred Medical Imaging, P.C. I was brought in to defend a lawsuit brought
by the law office of Stem & Montana representing AIU and 5 other insurance companies. AIU is
a wholly owned subsidiary of AIG. The relief sought was (a) disgorgement of monies paid by all
six plaintiff insurance carriers for all No-Fault Insurance claims ("PIP claims") to all three of
Schepp’s entities (and, by extension, to MCC and its related entities), and (b) declaring any and
all remaining claims, whether pending, denied or unfiled, to be uncollectible due to one of the
following three reasons which were alleged in that complaint (i) that MCC had purchased the
receivables and under New York No Fault Law only the provider or the patient could collect for
no fault treatments therefore said claims were uncollectible by MCC; (ii) that the three PCs,
Deajess, Boston Post Road and Preferred were fraudulently incorporated and according to the
ruling in the Mallela case were therefore uncollectible; and (iii) that the three PCs were in effect
owned and controlled by a non-doctor, Hillel Sher andhis entities, which made the receivables
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uncollectible. At the outset of the case, Stem & Montana obtained a temporary restraining order
preventing the collections of any of PIP claims which either Deajess, Boston Post Road or
Preferred had against any of the six plaintiffs. Although MCC was not a named defendant, they
were referred to throughout the body of the complaint itself and the suit included unnamed
individual and corporate defendants. It was MCC’s concern that, if the plaintiffs in that action
were successful all PIP claims by Deajess, Preferred and Boston Post Road would be
uncollectible based on the theory of collateral estoppel and further that decision might be binding
on MCC as a related corporation (it would have been a simple matter for AIU to name MCC and
its related entities as defendants).
Were Dr. Schepp and his PCs unsuccessful in that lawsuit all his receivables, which
MCC and its affiliates had financed, would be uncollectible under New York law. In addition,
there was a strong possibility that, had Dr. Schepp not prevailed, MCC would be bound by that
decision and might be forced to repay those monies that it already received. Judge Bucaria in
that action ("Action No. 1") issued a stay preventing Deajess, Boston Post Road and Preferred
from collecting any of the receivables owed by any of the six plaintiffs in Action No. 1 in Nassau
County. Thereafter Progressive and four other insurance companies brought an action in
Westchester County in which MCC and its related entities were also named as defendants (along
with another, unrelated doctor and management company). That action sought to recover from
MCC the sum of $3,000,000 as well as a declaration that all the receivables claimed against those
insurance companies were uncollectible. The action in Westchester County was subsequently
bifurcated (because of the unrelated parties) and the part of the action that related to the Schepp
PCs was removed to Nassau County and became Action No. 2 in that court. Thereafter, two
additional actions were started by Dr. Schepp pursuant to the instructions of MCC which
ultimately became actions 3 and 4 in Nassau County seeking declaratory relief against additional
carriers that owed the Schepp entities payment for services under No-Fault, which for the most
part MCC had financed. These four cases were consolidated for purposes of trial to one action. I
am enclosing a copy of that caption for your information. As I previously indicated, Judge
Bucaria granted a stay of any receivable collections in Action No. 1 and pursuant to the
instructions of Judge Bucaria, a voluntary stay was entered into in Actions 2, 3 and 4. It was
imperative to do this because if the Schepp parties lost in Action No. 1, the Schepp PCs would be
collaterally estopped from collecting the PIP claims against any of the other insurance
companies. It was therefore determined, in conjunction with both Dr. Schepp and MCC, that it
was necessary to have one global determination about the validity of the PIP claims.
Concurrently with that my law office got involved in three other matters relating to the
Schepp receivables. In one case, a simple PIP claim collection action against Progressive
Insurance Company, there was a finding by a lower court that the Schepp PC’s were in violation
under Mallela. If not reversed, that holding might have been res judicata as to all claims against
Progressive and collateral estoppel as to all the other insurance companies and therefore bar all
collections. That decision was appealed by us and reversed in the Appellate Term.
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There was also an arbitration pending in another claim collection action in which the
arbitrator indicated that Mallela was going to be an issue. We were again concerned about the
possible ramifications of an adverse decision there on the Nassau lawsuit. I also appeared in that
action and no Mallela violation was found. Lastly, concurrently therewith there was an action
pending in Supreme Court, Kings County where MCC and its related entities, Dr. Schepp and his
medical PC’s, among others, were plaintiffs and counterclaim defendants in an action with Hillel
Sher and his entities. It was determined, again after consultation with both Dr. Schepp and
Mcc, that it was advisable for us to appear in this action and we became lead counsel. It must
be noted that one of the claims in this action was that Hillel Sher took all the films from the
radiologoical readings performed by the Schepp PCs. The carriers are entitled to request copies
of these films before paying any claims. Without the films, from which to supply copies, no
claims for which copies were requested would be collectible. As you may be aware, insurance
carders in NY share information readily and once one carrier found out that no copies could be
produced, it would most likely result in requests for copies of films from every carrier on every
claim. That would again have made the claims virtually uncollectible. We lost a motion in the
Kings County action seeking an order directing Hillel Sher to turn over the films, however we
appealed and had that decision reversed by the Appellate Division. Unfortunately by the time we
secured that reversal, neither Hillel Sher nor the films could be located.
Thereafter, two of the insurance companies at the forefront of the attacks on Dr. Schepp’s
practice, State Farm and Travelers, brought a RICO action in the Eastern District of New York
naming Dr. Schepp and his entities and MCC and its related entities as defendants. This was an
"end around" by those companies to attempt to get a speedy determination in the Federal court
(which pushes cases at a much faster pace than State court) prior to the determination in the State
court. We attempted to obtain a stay of that action but were unsuccessful. If the Federal court
action resulted in an adverse determination to the Sehepp parties and the MCC parties, that
would again collaterally estop Dr. Schepp and MCC form collecting any of the receivables.
Therefore, it became a race between the State and Federal court actions. Based on early rulings
on motions in the Nassau County action, we believed Judge Bucaria better understood the
operation of the Schepp PCs and their management entities and how they were not operating in
violation of Malella.
Further, there were two additional actions brought in the Federal court: Dr. Schepp
brought a RICO action against State Farm and several other insurance companies in the Eastern
District for what we viewed as a concerted effort to unlawfully put him out of business, and then
we brought another action against State Farm on behalf of Dr. Schepp and MCC claiming that
State Farm failed to turn over proceeds of receivables of MCC when they had notice of the
assignment. That claim was based on information supplied by Joey Lampariello, to the effect
that a claims adjuster at State Farm had improperly sent checks in payment of claims to Hillel
Sher rather than to MCC’s lockbox. Subsequently we discovered that the information was
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incorrect and that the checks were in fact turned over by an attomey that had previously been
doing collection work for the Schepp PCs.
All the actions that I have outlined here were done with the advice and consent of MCC
and its affiliates and with the understanding that they would pay our fees for same.
I would also like to address the State Farm settlement. That settlement was the result of a
substantial amount of outstanding law work from this law office as well as using the good offices
of a third party to resolve this case. Up until recently, State Farm had taken the position that it
would not settle this case unless MCC and its affiliates wrote a check for $1,500,000. The
majority of the other insurance companies were waiting to see how this played out before making
any settlement offers. Based on this firm’s law work, we were able to facilitate a settlement
under which not only did MCC and the Schepp parties not have to disgorge any payments, but in
fact will receive $200,000 additional. Under all the circumstances this is an outstanding result.
Keep in mind that State Farm was well aware of the appointment of a Receiver for MCC and that
there would be no more funding to pursue the various lawsuits.
I understand the Receiver’s request for the full State Farm settlement proceeds to be paid
to him; however, this is unacceptable. The settlement monies are to be paid to this firm and we,
as attomeys and escrow agents in the state of New York, where the suit is pending and will be
settled, will fulfill our responsibility to properly disburse the monies. This firm has a charging
and retaining lien on 20% of those proceeds once received. Additionally, some of the settlement
proceeds simply do not belong to MCC or its related entities.
To clarify a misunderstanding that appears to exist, Preferred Medical Imaging, P.C.
continued in business subsequent to 2004 when MCC and its affiliates stopped funding it.
Beginning in 2006, Preferred’s receivables were financed by an entity named Summit. MCC
agreed at that time to subordinate its interest in receivables generated after that date, to Summit.
There is a signed subordination agreement to that effect. From the proposed State Farm
settlement, $8,000 is for claims generated after the 2006 subordination date and therefore belongs
to Summit. As to the balance of the money I would expect my lien for 20% will be paid out of
the proceeds before the money is disbursed.
While I understand that there may be $40 million dollars on the books of MCC for the
Schepp entities, to the best of my knowledge the PIP claims totaled $23,000,000 at the time I
became involved. Under NY law, PIP claims accrue compounded interest at the rate of 2% per
month, and perhaps that interest accrual raised the total on MCC’s books. During my
involvement, approximately a third of the claims were being handled by Moshe Fuld and most of
the rest by Elena Rynsky’s firm. There were also receivables that were minute in nature and
were handled by six or seven other law firms.
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I hope my explanation of the litigation has been of some assistance to you. As stated
above, I will supply the remaining information and documents requested in your January 15 letter
by February 15.

EKB:san
Enclosures
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COL~TY OF NASSAU
AIU Insurance Company, American Home Assurance
Company, New Hampshire Insurance Company, Eagle
Insurance Company, Newark Insurance Company
and Lion Insurance Company,
Plaintiffs,
-againstDeajess Medical Imaging, P.C., Boston Post Road Medical
Imaging, P.C. and Preferred Medical Imaging, P.C. and MRI
Global Imaging Services, Inc. a/lffa and]or d]b/a MRI Forums,
Robert Scott Schepp M.D., Hillel Sher, ABC Corporations
1 through 20 and John Does 1 through 20,
Defendants,
The Progressive Group of Insurers, One Beacon Insurance
Group, LLC and any and all of its subsidiaries and affiliates,
including but not limited to Autoone Insurance Company
and General Assurance Company and Esurance Holdings, Inc.,
and its subsidiaries and affiliates,
Consolidated Plaintiffs,
-against-

Robert Scott Schepp, M.D., Preferred Medical Imaging, P.C.,
Deajess Medical Imaging, P.C, Boston Post Road Medical
Imaging, P.C., Robert Scott Schepp, M.D., P.C., Hillel Sher,
MRI Global Imaging Services, Inc., Forum Medical
Management, P.C., Medical Capital Corporation, Medical
Capital Holdings, Inc., Medical Capital Management, Inc.,
MCC Special Purpose Corporation III, Carlmont Capital
Special Purpose Corporation 11, Healthcare Financial
Management & Acquisitions, Inc. and Specialty Practice
Management,
Consolidated Defendants.

Index No. 011935/05
Assigned Judge:
Bucaria, J.S.C.
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Deajess Medical Imaging, P.C., Boston Post Road Medical
Imaging, P.C. and Preferred Medical Imaging, P.C. and Robert
Scott Schepp M.D.,
Declaratory Judgment Plaintiffs,
-againstAllstate Insurance Company, American Transit Insurance
Company, Citiwide Auto Leasing, Inc., Clarendon Insurance
Company, Countrywide Insurance Company, Eveready
Insurance Company, Geico Insurance Company, Hartford
Insurance Company, Hudson Insurance Company, Kemper
Insurance Company, Lumbermen’s Insurance Company,
Lancer Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance
Company, Prudential Insurance Company, Met Life Auto &
Home Insurance Company, New York Central Mutual Fire
Insurance Company, Nationwide Insurance Company,
Travelers Indemnity Company, State Farm Insurance Company,
State Wide Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance
Company, Amerprise Auto & Home a/k/a Amex Assurance
Company, Chubb Indemnity Insurance Company, Electric
Insurance Company, Hereford Insurance Company,
Merchants Insurance Company of New Hampshire, Motor
Vehicle Accident Indemnification Corporation, Response
Insurance Company and Trumbull Insurance Company,
Declaratory Judgment Defendants.

